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From Dr, Clifford S. Leonard, Burlington,
Vt., comes the following:

“We note in Farm. Revy, 37 (1938) 697, a
description of the new laboratory of the techni-
cal division of the Swedish Royal Pharmaceuti-
cal Institute in Stockholm. A floor plan is
given. Pictures show aspects of the various
rooms and certain special apparatus. There
are six rooms: office, a main laboratory, also
housing semi-large scale vacuum distilling ap-
paratus, a tablet room, with tablet machines
and a sugar-coating pan, a bottle room, an ex-
traction room, with percolators mounted on wall
brackets in a manner shown in separated illus-
trations, an homogenizer is also located here;
a pulverizing room with mills and a roller table
for ball mills completes the set-up. The labora-
tory appears to be excellently equipped for the
study of processes which may be recommended
to the Swedish apothecaries for preparations
such as are frequently made in the local apothe-
cary’s work-room, under the continental
system.”

Sister Serena has been pharmacist at Provi-
dence Hospital, Washington, D." C., for fifty-
nine years and while incapacitated by injuries
she 1s interested in her work, which she can do,
seated in her wheel chair. She received her
certificate from the Board of Pharmacy by
examination, and is nearing her 80th birthday
anniversary.

Dr. Phillip G. Ackermann has recently joined
the Research staff of Cole Chemical Co., Inc.,
St. Louis, Mo., after obtaining his Ph.D. De-
gree in Chemistry through five years Post-
Graduate work at Johns Hopkins University.
Merle M. Jackson, M.S., of Kansas State Col-
lege and Park College, has also recently become
a member of their Control and Research De-
partment.

Temple TUniversity School of Pharmacy,
Philadelphia, Pa., has established a pharmacy
interneship, to be available each term to a
student who is outstanding in scholarship and
character, and whose interests run toward pro-
fessional and scientific pharmacy. This interne-
ship is made possible through the codperation
of Temple University Hospital. A graduate
of the school will be appointed at the conclusion

of each term to serve as an interne in the hos-
pital for the purpose of becoming proficient in
hospital pharmaceutical practice and manage-
ment. Mr. Leo Wolfe was the first to be ap-
pointed.

Dr. Robert Lee Swain, Baltimore, Md.,
has been named editor of Drug Topics and
Drug Trade News, to succeed the late Jerry
McQuade. Dr. Swain has been pharmacy
editor of Drug Topics since 1934. He is-also
a member of the U. S. P. Board of Trustees,
president of the Maryland Pharmaceutical
Association, secretary-treasurer of the Mary-
land Board of Pharmacy, Deputy Food and
Drug Commissioner of the Maryland State
Department of Health, and Professor of
Pharmaceutical Law at Temple University.

Dr. Samuel Colville Lind, dean of the Insti-
tute of Technology of the University of Minne-
sota, has been elected president of the American
Chemical Society to take office in 1940. Dr.
Lind assumed the title of president-elect on
January 1, 1939, at which time Prof. C. A.
Kraus of Brown University became president.

As president of the International Drug Club,
Dr. Wm. J. Schieffelin is requesting cotperation
in a movement to supply urgently needed drugs
and pharmaceuticals to the civilian population
of Spain. - The supplies are to be contributed
through the American Red Cross for distribu-
tion by the Friends Service Committee on an
impartial basis to the civilian sufferers:

Carl T. Durham, Chapel Hill, N. Car,,
pharmacist, was elected to the House of Repre-
sentatives at the last election. Mr. Durham
had never sought a political career but the
Committee could agree on no other man. He
is recognized as a valuable citizen of the com-
munity, and is the first pharmacist from North
Carolina to go to Congress.

Dr. Walter S. Landis, vice-president of the
Ametjcan Cyanamid Co., New VYork City, was
presented with the Perkins Medal for 1939, ata
joint meeting of the American section of the
Society of Chemical Industry and the American
Chemical Society, held at the Chemists’ Club.
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The First Aid Class of Fordham University,
College of Pharmacy, had the pleasure of hear-
ing Dr. Raymond Ditmars, curator of mam-
mals and reptiles at the New York Zojlogical
Park, speak on ‘‘Snake Venom and Serum.”
Dr. Ditmars illustrated by actually obtaining
the venom from a four-foot water moccasin,
onc of the most dangerous of snakes. He also
demonstrated the new suction cup for removing
venoni after a snake bite and advocated the use
of both cup and serum for best results.

The N. A. R. D. has advised that it has been
found necessary to change the dates of National
First Aid Weck from May 14th~20th as was
first announced to the following week, May
21st—27th. The latter arrangement offers two
advantages, it gets First Aid Week away from
Mother's Day and it also is coincident with
National Cotton Week which forms an ex-
cellent tie in.

Mr. Herbert Skinner, Ph.C., member of the
Council of the British Pharmaceutical Society,
will be retiring on March 3lst from the posi-
tion of chief pharmaccutist to the Royal
Northern Hospital, Holloway, London, N. 7.
In order to retain his association with the
hospital, the board of management have ap-
pointed him as consulting pharmaceutist. Mr.
Skinner joined the stafl of the Royal Northern
Hospital—then the Great Northern—in 1896
from Guys Hospital. He thus completes
nearly forty-three years’ service. He was
clected to the Council of the Pharmaceutical
Society in 1916 and was the president of the
Society in 1927-1929 and chairman of the
British Pharmaceutical Conference in Aber-
deen in 1932. He was vice-chairman of the
Revision Committee of the 1923 British Phar-
mnaceutical Codex, chairman of the Committee
of Revision publishing the 1934 Codex, and is
the chairman of the present Revision Corn-
mitter., Mr. Skinner is an Honorary member
of the AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIA-
TION,

Dr. Arno Viehoever, research professor of
Biology at the Philadelphia College of Phar-
niacy and Science, was invited by the new
Siamese government to act as its scientific
advisor. He obtained a leave of absence from
the college and has left for Bangkok. He will
evaluite domestic curative agents.

Dr. H. A. Langenhan, has resigned as
professor in Pharmacy at the University of
Washington to devote his entire time to the
management of the S. B. Penick Skagit Valley
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Goldenseal Farm. Dr. Langenham reccived
his B.A. degree in Pharmacecutical Chemistry
at the University of Illinois and his Ph.D.
degree at the University of Wisconsin. He
joined the faculty of the University of Wash-
ington in 1922 and became a full professor in
1928. He is recognized as an authority on
hydrastis, or goldensecal root, having received
the Ebert prize in 1932 for his paper on “A
Phytochemical Investigation of Hydrastis
Canadensis.”

The Ninth Annual Druggists’ Business
Conference, sponsored by the Pharmacy Ex-
tension Department of Purdue University,
LaFayette, Ind., will be held in the Meinorial
Union Building, March 21st and 22nd. Among
the subjects to be discussed are: “‘Genceral
Merchandising,” “Human Beings in Business,”
“Why Sell Vitamins?'’ “Social Security,”
“New Laws Affecting Pharmacy,” “It’s All
in Your Mind,” “Professional Atmosphere,”
‘“Most for the Least Money in Air Condition-
ing,” “Merchandising the Prescription De-
partment,” “New Remedies,” “Insccticides,”
“Know Your Ice Crecam and Mix,” ‘“‘Clerk
Training,” and “Trends in Pharmacy and
Medicine.”

The evening program of the first day in-
cludes the Annual Dinner followed by a talk
by Dr. R. G. Leland, Director, Burcau of
Medical Economics, American Medical Asso-
ciation, on ‘'Socialized Medicine and the
Public.” A second speaker will be, Mr. John
J. Haramy on ‘‘Dictatorships in Action.”

OBITUARY.
CHARLES HOWARD LAPOURAILLE

Mr. C. H. Lapouraille, widely known
pharmacist of Baltimore, Md., died on Mon-
day, January 16th, after scveral weeks illness,

After receiving lhis ecarly education in the
public schools, he entered the School of
Pharmacy, University of Maryland; gradu-
ated in 1907, and became a registered pharma-
cist that year. Mr. Lapouraille was a member
of a long-established pharmaceutical family,
and spent all of his life in the pharmacy pre-
viously conducted by his father at 1345
Orleans Street. Ile was a member of the
Maryland Pharmaceutical Association, Balti-
more Retail Druggists’ Association, and the
AMERICAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION.

Funeral services were held at his residence
January 19th, with interment in Loudon Park
Cemetery. Mrs. Lapouraille survives him.



